
NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
 

COUNCIL 

Monday, 23 January 2006 
 

YOU ARE SUMMONED TO ATTEND A MEETING OF NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH 

COUNCIL, WHICH WILL BE HELD AT THE GUILDHALL NORTHAMPTON ON 

MONDAY, THE TWENTY THIRD DAY OF JANUARY 2006 AT SIX THIRTY O’CLOCK 

IN THE EVENING WHEN THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS IS PROPOSED TO BE 

TRANSACTED:- 

 

 

 

1. MINUTES.   
 

 To approve the minutes of the proceedings of the Meeting of the Council held on28th 

November 2006. 

 

2. APOLOGIES.   

 

3. MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS.   

 

4. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES/QUESTIONS.   

 

5. TO ANSWER QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURAL RULE 5.2.   

 

6. NOTICE OF MOTION   
 

 Councillor Marriott to move and Councillor Roy to second:- 
 

(1) That Procedural Rule 3.4 be suspended  
 

(2) This Council deplores the proposed cuts in investment and the proposed tendering 

out of Youth Services in the draft Northamptonshire County Council Budget. 
 

This Council believes that any cuts in provision or action that may produce 

instability in the operation of the service will result in:- 
  



 

Potential increases in crime and disorder with reduced diversion facilities 
Larger impacts on those young people from families least able to afford alternatives 
Longer term implications on the well being of young people in the Borough Area 
 
The Council agrees to submit to the consultation on the County Council’s Budget its 

significant concerns on the issue. 

 

7. PROGRESS ON RECOVERY PLAN   
 

 Report of the Leader on behalf of the Improvement Board 

 

8. POLITICAL STRUCTURES - REPORT OF SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL   

 

9. RECENT NOTICES OF MOTION   
 

 To receive a report on action taken following notices of motion 

 

10. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF SPECIAL 

CIRCUMSTANCES THE MAYOR IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE 

CONSIDERED.   

 

  

The Guildhall 

Northampton 

13
th

 January 2006  M.Mc.Lean Chief Executive  



ffernandes/council230106 

  
 

COUNCIL 
 
23 January 2006 
 

 Item No. 

   
Directorate:  
Finance, Governance & Citizens  
Mario Abela 
Author/Contact Officer: 
 
Francis Fernandes 
Solicitor to the Council 
 

  
 
POLITICAL STRUCTURES AND 
MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 

 

   
Recommendations 
 
That Council: 
 
1. Agrees changes to allow delegated decision-making by Portfolio Holders to take 

place in non-formally constituted meetings unless members of the public or 
Councillors indicate, in writing, that they would wish a public meeting to consider an 
item identified on a published list. 

 
2. Delegates to the Improvement Board powers to determine the format and structure of 
 future Council meetings. 
 
3. Delegates powers to the Solicitor to the Council to make amendments to the 

Constitution to enable the implementation of recommendations 1 and 2 above. 
 

 Nominates councillors to the Constitutional Review Working group and notes the 
timetable for the commencement of the Constitutional review. 

 
5. Appoints Cllr Mathews as the Chair of the Tree Panel. 
 
Background 
 
Delegated Decision Making 
 
Council considered and approved a major review of the Council’s Political Structures and 
Governance arrangements at its meetings on 29 September 2005. This report seeks 
Council’s authority to implement some changes following on from that report. 
 
An important aspect of the changes to the Council’s new political structures included 
constitutional changes to allow the Leader to specify a scheme of delegations for each 

Agenda Item 8



 2

Cabinet Portfolio Holder within their respective Portfolio Area.  The scheme of delegations 
will be finalised shortly and delegated decision-making will commence soon after.  The 
practical impact of this is that Portfolio Holders will have legal powers, within the scheme of 
delegations to make decisions in relation to areas within their Portfolio.  Whilst the principle 
of delegated decision has already been approved by full Council, Councillors raised 
concerns about the proposed format of the Portfolio Holder meetings.  The Political 
Structures report had suggested meetings in private unless the decision was a Key 
decision.  However, Councillors had concerns about this and indicated a clear preference 
for Portfolio Holder decision-making to take place in public. This report identifies practical 
and substantive problems with the suggested approach and identifies a way forward which 
goes some way towards providing a resolution. 
 
The Law 
 
The changes brought about by the modernisation agenda and the Local Government Act 
2000 changes, have been extremely wide ranging.  One of the main drivers for the changes 
was to bring about clear efficiencies balanced by effective accountabilities in Council 
decision-making.  The Law only requires Executive decisions that are Key Decisions to be 
made in public. Key decisions are defined by the Local Authority (Exec. Arrangements) 
(ETC) (England) Regulations 2000 as an executive decision which is: 
 
 “likely to result in the Local Authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of 
savings which are, significant having regard to the Local Authority’s budget for the service or 
the function to which the decision relates or to be significant in terms of its effects on 
Communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards or electoral 
divisions in the area for Local Authority”. 
 
Non-key executive decisions do not need to be made in public and the regulations quite 
clearly anticipate this. In fact a number of Local Authorities do not hold delegated decision 
making in public. 
 
There is a balance to be drawn between efficiencies and transparency in decision-making.  
If delegated decisions were to be made in public, normal meeting procedures would need to 
be engaged to support the meeting.  Therefore, the meetings would have to be anticipated 
and agreed; agendas and documents published and meetings supported and resourced in 
the normal way.  This would, without a doubt, slow the decision-making and negate the very 
advantages sought from delegated decision-making powers. 
 
Holding meetings in private does not diminish the accountability or transparency of the 
decision-making. Current regulations require records of delegated executive decisions to be 
made and published. There are similar provisions in the Council’s Constitution which ensure 
that this will happen. There is further accountability in that delegated decisions will, under 
proposed amendments to the Council’s Constitution, be automatically notified to the Chair of 
Scrutiny and there will be an opportunity to call-in decisions in the normal way.  
 
This report proposes a halfway house between public and private meetings.  It is proposed 
that a list of non-Key delegated Portfolio Holder decisions will be published at least 7 
working days before the decision is actually to be made. The list will be in a similar format to 
the Forward Plan, although this list will be non-statutory and separate from the Forward 
Plan.    If members of the public or Councillors indicate, in writing, within this 7 day window 
that they wish a particular item to be considered in a public meeting then a meeting will be 
constituted in the normal way and will be open to the public.  



 3

Tracking the Decision-making 
 
The decision-making would track as follows: If an item was identified as a Key decision, it 
would appear on the Forward Plan wherever the decision was being made i.e Cabinet; 
Improvement Board; Portfolio delegated decision etc. These decisions would have to be 
made in public. 
 
If a Portfolio Holder decision was a non-Key decision then it would be published in the non-
statutory list and would be held in private unless Councillors or members of the public 
indicated in writing within 7 days that they wanted the decision to be made in public. A 
meeting to consider the issue in public would then be arranged in the normal way and 
similar rules to current public meetings would apply. A simple table illustrates this: 
 
 
 Key Decision Non-Key Decision 
Meeting 
arrangement 

in Public 
 
 
Noted in Forward Plan 

In Private (unless member of 
public/Councillor request 
 
Noted in Non-Statutory list 

 
Changes to the Constitution will need to be made to allow all this to be implemented. 
 
Format and Structure of Council Meetings 
 
Following the political structures changes, the format and structure of Council meetings 
have been touched upon and discussed in past Council meetings. Councillors will be aware 
that the whole constitution is being reviewed and as part of that review fundamental 
changes to the format and structure of full Council meetings will be developed by a member 
led group. Changes will be proposed to full Council at a later date. However, there is a need 
to make changes in the interim to continue progress on modernising the Council’s decision 
–making and to reflect the evolving new structures. The Improvement Board, given its cross-
party involvement and its focus on Improvement, is best placed to consider these interim 
arrangements. Therefore, it is proposed that the Improvement Board should consider this 
issue and make the relevant changes. It is therefore recommended that powers to enable 
this to happen are delegated to the Improvement Board, with delegated Powers to the 
Solicitor to the Council to make the relevant changes to the Constitution to implement what 
is agreed. 
 
Review of the Constitution 
 
The review of the Constitution has been identified as a project within the Recovery Plan. 
Whilst a Working group was set up to look at the Constitution, the last meeting was some 
time ago and changes in circumstances may need membership changes. This report seeks 
nominations to the Constitutional Review Working group. The Working group will be set up 
as soon as possible after nominations have been confirmed and its work will commence 
with scoping of the project; setting time-scales; agreeing the appointment of a facilitator and 
considering desktop research that will identify best practice from leading authorities. The 
following are target time-scales: 15th Feb, appointment of a facilitator; 1st March Desk-top 
Research; 15th March paper proposal and an options review; 30th March detailed project 
plan. The target date for presentation and adoption of the new Constitution is the August full 
Council meeting.  
 



 4

Tree Panel 
 
The Chair of the Tree Panel remains to be appointed by full Council. The Improvement 
Board discussed the appointment at its meeting on 19 January 2006 and resolved to 
recommend Cllr Richard Mathews for appointment to the Chair of the panel. Full Council is 
asked to confirm this recommendation. 
 
 

 



 

amay/councilmaster 1 

 
 

Council 
 
Date:  23 January 2006 
 

  
Item No: 

   

 
 
Author/Contact Officer: 
Mairi McLean 
Chief Executive 
Ext. 8725 
 

 Title of the Report:  
Progress on Previous Council Motions 

   
 
  
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The appendix of this report sets out the appropriate motions that have been 

approved by Council at its meetings up to 28 November 2005 and the latest 
progress to date on them. 

 
 

Recommendation:  That the Council receives this report. 

Agenda Item 9



 Page 1 of 13 

 
 

Name of Committee 
 
COUNCIL 
23 January 2006 
 

 Item No. 

   
Report of Directorate: 
Citizens, Governance and Finance 
 
Author/Contact Officer: 
Thomas Hall  ext 7593 
 

  
Local Area Agreement 
 

   
Purpose of Report 
 
The purpose of this report is to update and inform the Council on latest 
developments on the Local Area Agreement (LAA) for Northamptonshire, to 
propose modifications to the proposals relating to governance of the agreement, 
and to propose a process for signing off the final agreement. 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Improvement Board is recommended to: 

i) note the contents of this report; 
ii) request that this Council’s representation on the Strategic Board for the 

LAA be increased from one to two Councillors; 
iii) request that Councillors be represented on each of the ‘block’ boards; 
iv) nominate a representative for the shadow Strategic Board; and  
v) agree that the delegated authority to agree the final proposals be given to 

the Improvement Board, meeting on 16 February. 
 

 
Summary and Links to Recovery Plan 
 
This paper sets out the latest position regarding the Local Area Agreement.  In 
particular, it describes: 

• the outcomes and indicators, in summary, which will form the basis of the 
agreement, 

• proposed arrangements for governance, 

• the timetable for achieving agreement, and 
approaches to the alignment of funding and implementation 

Improving partnership working is a key element of this Council’s Recovery Plan, and 

Agenda Item 10



 Page 2 of 13 

the Local Area Agreement is potentially the single most significant vehicle for 
achieving this. 

 
 
Outcomes and Indicators 
 
The Local Area Agreement (LAA) is essentially about improved outcomes for 
local people, and these outcomes and associated performance indicators are 
the heart of the proposed agreement.  Starting from the seven existing 
community strategies in the county, a complex process of discussion has lead 
to the following outcomes for the four LAA ‘blocks’ (but still subject to further 
refinement): 
 
Safer and Stronger Communities – 
1 To significantly improve the quality of life for people living in the most disadvantaged 

(rural and urban) areas by developing and implementing neighbourhood approaches 
through the neighbourhood renewal strategy target areas 

2 To reduce crime, increase public confidence and reduce the fear of crime, reduce the 
harm of drug, substance and alcohol abuse and reduce the impact of anti-social 
behaviour 

3 To reduce the number of accidents 
4 To strengthen communities by supporting development of the Voluntary and 

Community Sector, giving people a greater voice and influence over decision making 
and developing cohesive communities 

5 To create cleaner, safer and greener communities 
 
Economic Development, Enterprise and Growth – 
1 To increase skill levels in the labour market to ensure that labour supply is inclusive 

and meets the needs of the county's employers both now and in the future 
2 To promote growth in the number of enterprises in Northamptonshire, with a specific 

focus on knowledge economy employers, and maximise the benefits of their growth 
all, but particularly for excluded communities 

3 To increase the affordability, supply, quality and condition of housing in 
Northamptonshire 

4 To increase the accessibility of communities to meet their needs and maximise their 
opportunities 

 
Children and Young People - 
1 To ensure children and young people achieve healthy life-styles by avoiding obesity, 

substance misuse and unplanned teenage pregnancy 
2 To ensure children and young people enjoy improved mental health through high 

quality services 
3 To provide a safe environment for children and young people by better multi-agency 

services supporting families 
4 To improve the life-chances for a) children with disabilities b) looked after children 
5 To improve educational attainment and enjoyment (including increased access to 

recreation and leisure) 
6 To improve attendance, raise levels of behaviour and reduce incidences of bullying 
7 To overcome social, accommodation and economic disadvantage for children and 

young people through collaborative service approaches 
8 To increase the proportion of young people accessing education, employment, 

training or volunteering post-16 
9 To increase opportunities for children and young people to influence the way services 

are provided 
10 To reduce the number of children and young people affected by offending and 

victimisation 
 
Healthier Communities and Older People 
1 Supporting independent living for Older People 



 Page 3 of 13 

2 Increasing the quality of life and reducing social isolation for Older People 
3 Reducing health inequalities for the population of Northamptonshire 
4 Improving the health of the population of Northamptonshire 
5 Reduce poverty and the effects of poverty in Northamptonshire by supporting people 

to maximise their income through benefits and debt management 

 
These, together with the corresponding proposed performance indicators, are 
attached as Appendix 1. 
 
Governance 
 
The governance arrangements for the LAA proposed by the existing LAA 
Chief Officers Group are summarised in the diagram below: 

 
 
The principle has been to create as few new bodies as possible, dividing 
strategy/prioritising from performance/delivery, and using existing local 
structures for scrutiny. 
 
Proposed membership of the Strategic Board is attached as Appendix 2.  
Northampton Borough Council, despite its size and pivotal role in the 
development of the county, is only allocated one seat under these proposals.  
There is a clear danger that the interests of Northampton’s citizens will 
therefore not weigh as heavily as they should in decisions.  It is therefore 
proposed that the LAA Chief Officers’ Group be asked to increase this 
representation to two Councillors from this Council. 
 
The ‘block’ boards (eg Safer, Stronger Communities Board) do not currently 
include Councillor representatives or equivalent.  These will be the places 
where most of the delivery will be managed.  The lack of elected members in 
such discussions appears to create a worrying gap in accountability.  
Therefore it is proposed that the Chief Officers’ Group be asked to reconsider 
the composition of these boards, to allow at least some Councillor 
membership. 



 Page 4 of 13 

 
This Council is being invited to nominate a Councillor to sit on the ‘shadow’ 
Strategic Board, which is due to meet for the first time on 2 February, followed 
by a second meeting on 20 February.  These dates are aligned to the 
timetable for submission of the draft and final LAA to GOEM (see below).  The 
shadow Board will need to review the development of, and finally sign off, the 
LAA. 
 

Timetable for Participation and Agreement 
 
The Local Area Agreement (LAA) final proposal must be submitted to the 
Government Office for the East Midlands (GOEM) by 21 February, for GOEM 
to forward with their comments to the ODPM by 24 February.  Working back, 
a draft (the third main draft) will be submitted to GOEM on the 3 February for 
final comments and advice. 
 
Following the recent change to the meeting calendar, there will not now be a 
meeting of the full Council between today’s meeting and 27 February.  Clearly 
the latter is too late to endorse the LAA, while the definitive draft is not yet 
available.  As a pragmatic solution it is therefore proposed that delegated 
authority to agree the final proposals be given to the Improvement Board, 
meeting on 16 February. 
 
The third and final ‘wider partnership event’ will be taking place on the 
morning of 10 February at Rushden and Diamonds’ ground, Irthlingborough.  
This will not be a decision-making event but, like its predecessor on 2 
December 2005, will provide an opportunity for participation and discussion.  
Invitations will be sent out shortly. 
 
Funding Alignment 
 
All participating partners need to show how their resources, particularly their 
core funding, will contribute to the LAA outcomes.  At this early stage the 
expectation is that this Council will be able to demonstrate an alignment 
between its budgets and the 24 outcomes, and senior staff have been 
meeting with the LAA team to deliver this.  At a later date the Council may be 
expected to indicate its budget allocation to individual indicators.  The ‘pooling’ 
of budgets by the various authorities is still some way off, and it has been 
recognised that this would require the kind of mutual confidence which will 
grow over time. 
 
Assuming that the LAA is agreed, it will need to become embedded in service 
planning throughout the Council. 
 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The LAA is intended to simplify funding streams and, through the achievement 
of agreed ‘stretch’ targets, to secure additional funds for local services.  The 
implementation of the Agreement should result in the realignment of budgets 
towards the agreed outcomes, rather than additional expenditure.  Effective 



 Page 5 of 13 

partnership working offers the prospect of efficiency savings in the future, but 
these cannot be quantified at this point. 
 
Social Impact 
 
LAA outcomes are specifically targeted at addressing the problems of the 
most deprived communities and reducing inequalities, while improving quality 
of life for everyone.  More ‘joined up’ services between partners will improve 
accessibility and efficiency of service delivery to those who need it most. 
 
Conclusions 
 
The Local Area Agreement has enormous potential to improve service 
delivery from agencies working together.  It has however been developed at 
great speed, and in particular opportunities for democratic accountability have 
not been as great as is desirable.  The recommendations of this report 
represent a pragmatic approach to engaging this Council in the process and 
seeking some significant improvements in its governance. 
 
Consultees 
 
The principal means of consultation through the development of the LAA has 
been a series of ‘partnership events’ to which Councillors, key staff and 
representatives of many agencies have been invited. 
 
Background Papers 
 
Northamptonshire Local Area Agreement – 2nd submission to GOEM (2 
December 2005) 
Minutes of LAA Chief Officer Group 



 Page 6 of 13 

Appendix 1 
 

Outcomes and Indicators (draft 17 January 2006) 
 

SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES 
 

SSC 1 : To significantly improve the quality of life for people living in the most disadvantaged (rural  
and urban) areas by developing and implementing neighbourhood approaches through the  
neighbourhood renewal strategy target areas 
 
A. To reduce the numbers of Super Output Areas in the 20% most deprived in the country (improved position 
on all domains and individual domains) 
B. Numbers of Neighbourhood Renewal areas with action plans, and local coordination boards evidencing 
significant community involvement and leadership – Includes rural neighbourhood renewal areas 
C. Percentage of residents satisfied with the delivery of local services (including; ability to influence services, 
satisfaction with neighbourhood, satisfaction with environment and feeling that facilities have improved) 

 

 
SSC 2 : To reduce crime, increase public confidence and reduce the fear of crime, reduce the harm  
of drug, substance and alcohol abuse and reduce the impact of anti-social behaviour 
 
A. Reduce crime & reduce the gap between the highest crime ‘Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership’ 
areas and the best comparable areas (Northampton and Corby) - Reduction in all crime levels in most 
disadvantaged SOAs in Corby, Northampton, Wellingborough and Kettering for: violent crimes (town centre 
violence, alcohol related crime and domestic abuse), deliberately started fires, reducing number of priority 
and prolific offenders 
B. Reduce the fear of crime and the impact of anti-social behaviour 

 
 
SSC 3 : To reduce the number of accidents 

 
A. Deaths from avoidable injury 
B. (Emergency) Hospital admissions for accidental injuries in; i) children aged 0-4 years and ii) adults aged 
65 years or more 
C. All killed or seriously injured casualties; i) Children and ii) Drivers aged between 18 and 24 years  
D. The number of deaths arising from accidental fires in dwellings per 100,000 population 
E. Deaths and serious injury from accidents in the workplace/ Number of accidents in the workplace 

 
 
SSC 4 : To strengthen communities by supporting development of the Voluntary and Community  
Sector, giving people a greater voice and influence over decision making and developing cohesive 
communities 
 
A. % of adults who feel that they can influence decisions affecting their local areas 
B. % of residents who feel that their local area is a place where people from different backgrounds can get on 
well together   
C. % of residents who affirm that they carried out voluntary work in an organisation once a month or more in 
the past year. 
D. % of VCS groups and organisations affirming growth in activity in the past year in terms of financial 
turnover 
E. Increase in the number of voluntary organisations receiving support who express satisfaction with the 
support received 
F. Proportion of services in selected public service areas delivered by VCS organisations on behalf of the 
local authority 
 

 



 Page 7 of 13 

SSC 5 : To create cleaner, safer and greener communities 
 
A. Increase in take up rate of household waste recycling in target areas and percentage of people happy with 
recycling facilities or services 
B. Improvement in the cleanliness of the neighbourhood and percentage of the area falling short of a 
tolerable standard 
C. Increase choice of green space accessible to growth areas in Northamptonshire by the establishment of a 
strategic Green Infrastructure. Should incorporate a specific increase in the percentage of the county which is 
designated as a County Wildlife Site 
D. Making communities and environments safer by ensuring targeted existing and new developments are 
subject to planning out crime criteria (i.e. percentage of new housing that meets the ‘secured by design’ 
certification criteria) 

 



 Page 8 of 13 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENTERPRISE AND GROWTH 
 

EDEG 1 : To increase skill levels in the labour market to ensure that labour supply is 
inclusive and meets the needs of the county's employers both now and in the future 

 
A. Increase the proportion of people with qualifications at Level 2 and above, with a particular focus on Corby  
B. Increase the proportion of people of working age population with qualifications at Level 4 and above 
(degree equivalent), with a particular focus on Corby and Wellingborough 
C. Address barriers to the labour market, through (i) reducing the number of people on incapacity benefits, 
particularly in Corby (ii) maintaining employment rate of older workers (aged 50-64) despite an aging 
demographic 
 

 
 
EDEG 2 : To promote growth in the number of enterprises in Northamptonshire, with 
a specific focus on knowledge economy employers, and maximise the benefits of 
their growth all, but particularly for excluded communities 

 
A. Increase the proportion of people employed in management and professional occupations 
B. Strengthen Northamptonshire's base of 'creative industry' enterprise activity (as defined by Creative 
Connections): (i) Proportion of all creative businesses in East Midlands based in Northamptonshire (ii) 
Proportion of all Northamptonshire employees employed in creative industries sector 
 
 
EDEG 3 : To increase the affordability, supply, quality and condition of housing in  
Northamptonshire 

 
A. Level of affordable housing delivered:  Proportion of all housing completed that is social housing 
B. Increase and extend capacity to manage a robust and responsive planning process by increasing the 
amount of Planning Delivery Grant for Northamptonshire local authorities 

 
 
 
EDEG 4 : To increase the accessibility of communities to meet their needs and 
maximise their opportunities 
 
A. Increase accessibility to health provision, with a particular focus on disadvantaged rural wards: % of 
Kettering and other households with access within 60 minutes to: (i)General Hospitals (ii) General and 
Community Hospitals (iii) % of households with access to GPs within 15 minutes 
B. Increase the proportion of settlements under 3,000 inhabitants receiving a twice daily or better bus service 
C. Increase the proportion of settlements over 3,000 inhabitants receiving an hourly or better bus service 
D. Increase take-up of sports facilities through improving access.   Population within 20 minutes walk of either 
a pool, sports hall or health & fitness centre  
E. Increase access to rural village services by reducing the closure rate of rural shops through provision of 
business advice/support to rural retail businesses, built upon the South Northamptonshire DC model 

 
 



 Page 9 of 13 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 
 

CYP 1 : To ensure children and young people achieve healthy life-styles by avoiding obesity,  
substance misuse and unplanned teenage pregnancy 
 
A. Reduction in the number of Year 11 students in Northamptonshire reporting getting drunk in the last year 
and month as compared to students elsewhere 
B. Reduction in the number of students reporting that their first experience of sexual intercourse was as a 
result of the influence of alcohol. 
C. Number of secondary schools in Northamptonshire achieving the Personal Social and Health Education 
element of National Healthy Schools Status.   (NB: This element includes Sex & Relationship Education and 
drug education which includes alcohol, tobacco & volatile substance abuse education)  
 

 
CYP 2 : To ensure children and young people enjoy improved mental health through high quality  
services 
 
A. Children and young people able to access a comprehensive children’s and adolescent mental health 
service,  in particular:- 
Indicator 1 
24 hour access to local crisis and home intervention services at tiers 3 and 4 

• Reduced number of inpatient admissions  

• Reduced length of inpatient stay 

• Number of home treatment packages delivered 
Indicator 2 
Improve capability of practitioners providing universal services (tier 1)  

• Expansion and co-ordination of multi-agency training 
 

 
CYP 3 : To provide a safe environment for children and young people by better multi-agency  
services supporting families 
 
A. Percentage referrals to Children’s Services that are re-referrals APA 
B. Decrease in the number of children re-registered onto Child Protection Register  
C. Reduce no. of young people as victims of criminal offences committed by young people 
 

 
CYP 4 : To improve the life-chances for a) children with disabilities b) looked after children 
 
A. Improve KS results for children with SEN.  Reduce numbers not achieving 
B. School attendance of Looked After Children 
C. Improve GCSE attainment of young people looked after.  No. with at least 1 GCSE in year 

 
CYP 5 : To improve educational attainment and enjoyment (including increased access to  
recreation and leisure) 
 
A. Improved attainment at KS4 
B. Improved attainment at KS4: Black Caribbean & Bangladeshi pupils: Wellingborough & Northampton 
 
CYP 6 : To improve attendance, raise levels of behaviour and reduce incidences of bullying 
 
A. Absence rates in: Primary Schools, Secondary Schools, Combined 
B. Reported incidences of bullying; Years 5-6 and Years 7-9 (or racial harassment) 
C. Develop ASB strategy to maintain low levels of anti-social behaviour and  no. of young people subject to 
an ASBO 

 



 Page 10 of 13 

CYP 7 : To overcome social, accommodation and economic disadvantage for children and young  
people through collaborative service approaches 
 
A. % of schools able to offer year-round access to child care 
B. No. of young people accepted as homeless and % of supported accommodation packages that result in a 
successful outcome KPI 1 and 2, Supporting People.  Increase number of places in suitable accommodation 
available to young people living independently 

 
CYP 8 : To increase the proportion of young people accessing education, employment, training or  
volunteering post-16 
 
A. Proportion of 16-18s not in employment, education or training (EET) in Northampton and the rest of county 
B. Increase year 11 positive progression – (i.e. has a learning offer at 1 July) 

 
CYP  9 : To increase opportunities for children and young people to influence the way services are  
provided 
 
A. % schools that have an elected school Council and % Schools Councils meeting standards set through 
Youth involvement Conference 
B. Increased involvement in individual service reviews: a) LAC  b) SEN 

 
CYP 10 : To reduce the number of children and young people affected by offending and  
victimisation 
 
A. Reduce proportion of first time entrants to criminal justice system 
B. Repeat offences during year by young people finishing community orders / leaving custody 
C. Offending by looked after children 

 



 Page 11 of 13 

HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES AND OLDER PEOPLE 
 

HCOP 1 : Supporting independent living for Older People 

 
A  Increase in the number of people aged 65 and over helped to live at home through improving 
• The number of people receiving Intensive Home Care 
• The number of older people helped to live at home by Primary Care Trusts through the provision of 
community based services 
• The percentage of items of equipment or adaptations delivered within 7 working days by Northamptonshire 
County Council 
• The percentage of items of equipment or adaptations delivered within 7 working days by Primary Care 
Trusts 
• And reducing the number of people over 65 treated for neck of femur fractures at KGH and NGH  
B. Increasing the availability of Assistive Technology 
 

 
HCOP 2 : Increasing the quality of life and reducing social isolation for Older People 

 
A. Increasing the quality of life for people over 65 in the key domains of independence  
B. Increasing employment opportunities for older people 

 
 
HCOP 3 : Reducing health inequalities for the population of Northamptonshire 

 
A. To make Northamptonshire smoke free by 2009 through 
• Extension of the Northamptonshire Smoke free Charter to cover all enclosed public places 
• Increase the number of people giving up smoking (Primary Care Trust Target measured at 4 weeks) 
• Increasing the number of manual workers giving up smoking (Primary Care Trust target) 
• Reducing the level of underage sales of tobacco (Trading Standards target) 
B.  Reduce Infant Mortality by 10% by 2010 by 
• Increasing the number of mothers who initiate breast feeding (Primary Care Trust target) 
• Increasing the number of mothers who continue breast feeding after 6 weeks (Primary Care Trust target) 
• Reducing the number of mothers who smoke in pregnancy (Primary Care Trust target) 
 

 

HCOP 4 : Improving the health of the population of Northamptonshire 

 
A. To halt the year on year in obesity in children under 11 by 2010 (from 02 – 04 baseline) in the context of a 

broader strategy to tackle obesity in the population as a whole by 
• Reducing obesity in children 
• Reducing obesity in adults 
• 100% schools meeting the Health Schools Award status by 2009 
B. Improve Sexual Health by 
• Reducing the number of cases of sexually transmitted diseases  
• Extending the Chlamydia Screening Programme  
C.  Improve access to information through 
• The development (by Northampton Primary Care Trust) and distribution of the Self Care Handbook  
• The development of Lifestyle Advisors/Health Trainers by Primary Care Trusts  
• Mrs Barker Project to connect information and access points of statutory agencies 

 
HCOP 5 : Reduce poverty and the effects of poverty in Northamptonshire by supporting people to 
maximise their income through benefits and debt management 

 
A.  Improving access to debt management  
•   Council Tax Credit claims 
•   Debt management advice 
B.  Reduce Pensioner Poverty 
• Pension Credit claims 



 Page 12 of 13 

• Attendance Allowance claims 
C.  Ensure the best start for all children and end child poverty by 2020 
• Increasing the proportion of parents with care on Income Support and income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance 
who receive maintenance for their children to 65 per cent by March 2008. 

 



 Page 13 of 13 

Appendix 2 
 

Strategic Board 
Proposed Membership 

 
 
This should comprise  

- two elected members from NCC  
- one elected member from each Borough/District  
- one elected member of the Police Authority  
- an appointee representing the voluntary sector – appointed by the 

County wide Voluntary Sector Network  
- one appointee from each of the four block management bodies as 

follows:- 
o a criminal justice sector appointee chosen by the Safer and 

Stronger Communities Board  
o a further education/skills sector appointee chosen by the 

Children and Young People Board  
o a Health Sector appointee chosen by the HCOP Board  
o a private sector appointee chosen by the new merged economic 

development agency for the county.  
 
TOTAL 15 (10 elected members)  
 


